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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

CAROLYN MARTIN, Case No.

T gy 1 | ] i“ri‘{i,ﬁ .,
Plaintift, V1879w AJB
V. , COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND
NAVAL CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIVE INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND
SERVICE (“"NCIS™); MARK D. CLOOKIE, DAMAGES AND DEMAND FOR
NCIS DIRECTOR,; WADE JACOBSON, JURY TRIAL FOR:

NCIS ACTING SPECIAL AGENT [N o )
CHARGE, MARINE CORPS WEST FIELD I. Retaliation for First Amendment-

OFFICE; SEAN SULLIVAN, STAFF Protected Speech

JUDGE ADVOCATE, MARINE CORPS 2. Unreasonable Search and Seizure
RECRUIT DEPOT SAN DIEGO; GERALD 3. Unreasonable [nterference with
“JERRY” MARTIN, NCIS SPECIAL Employment in Violation of Due
AGENT; RAY MABUS, SECRETARY OF PI’QCGSS

THE NAVY; JOHN DOES (-7, 4. Violation of First Amendment Right of
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Plaintitf Carolyn Martin (“Ms. Martin” or “Plaintift”) brings this action against the
Secretary of the Navy, the Naval Criminal (nvestigative Service (“NCIS”), NCIS supervisory
officers, NCIS Special Agent Gerald “Jerry” Martin (“Special Agent Martin™), Staff Judge
Advocate Sean Sullivan ("SJA Sullivan™), and Johnr Does 1-7 (collectively “Defendants™), and
atleges as follows:

INTRODUCTION AND NATURE OF THE ACTION

L. Ms. Martin previously served in the U.S. Marine Corps and now works as a
contract investigator. In particular, she investigates cz‘izﬁinal charges against Marines and sailors
in courts-martial and other proceedings. As in civilian criminal proceedings, justice is served in
military criminal proceedings when there is a strong defense based on independent investigation.

2. Detendant NCIS is the prosecution’s principal investigative agency in the Navy
and Marine Corps criminal justice system. NCIS retaliated against Ms. Martin because she is a
zealous, effective defense investigator. Special Agent Martin and his colleagues seized Ms.
Martin for hours without justification, pounded on her front door near dawn one morning to
falsely “charge™ her with a federal felony on a district court violation notice, spied on her at her
home, and traumatized her in other ways. SJA Sullivan barred Ms. Martin from a military
courtroom without sufficient justification. This conduct jeopardizes Ms. Martin’s ability to work
and earn a living as a conftract investigator,

3. Through this action, Ms. Martin seeks money damages pursuant to Bivens v. Six
Unknown Named Agents of the Fed. Bureau of Narcotics, 403 U.S. 388 (1971), for violation of
her rights under the First and Fourth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution; and declacatory and
injunctive reliet for violation of her rights under the First Amendment and the Due Process
Clause of the Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

4. The Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331.
5. The Court has the power to award money damages for constitutional violations
pursuant to Bivens, supra, and to grant declaratory and injunctive relief pursuant to 5 U.S.C. §

702, Federal Rule ol Civil Procedure 65 and 28 U.S.C. § 2201.
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6. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defeadants.
7. Venue is proper in the Southern District of California pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1391(¢) because the events which give rise to this action occurred within this district and Plaintiff

resides within this district,

PARTIES
8. Plaintiff Carolyn Martin is, and at all times relevant was, a citizen of California

working and residing in San Diego County.

9. Defendant Naval Criminal [nvestigative Service (“NCIS”) is the worldwide
nvestigatory agency for the U.S. Navy and U.S, Marine Corps (*“USMC”). NCIS offices and
officers are located in San Diego County.

0. Defendant Mark D. Clookie is the Director of NCIS. He is responsible for all
NCIS activities.

LL. Detendant Wade Jacobson is the Acting Special Agent in Charge (“SAC™) of the
NCIS Marine Corps West Field Office at Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton in San Diego
County, California. e is directly responsible for NCIS field offices and agents in the
southwestern United States, including San Diego County.

12. Defendant Sean Sullivan is, and at all times relevant was, working in San Diego
County, California as the Staft Judge Advocate at the Marine Corps Recruit Depot San Diego and
ts an active duty USMC Lieutenant Colonel.

(3. Defendant Gerald “Jerry” Martin is, and at all times relevant was, working in San
Diego County, California as a Special Agent with NCIS.

L4, Defendant Ray Mabus is the Secretary of the Navy. He is ultimately respousible
for directing, controlling, supervising, and overseeing all NCIS and USMC Staff Judge Advocate
activities.

{5. The true names of Defendants John Does 1-7 are unknown to Plaintift, who
therefore sues said Defendants by said fictitious names. Defendant Doe | once identified himself
to Plaintitt as a Special Agent with the Office of Inspector General, but did not specify the agency

tor which he works. Defendant Does 2-7 were at all relevant times military police officers at
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Marine Corps Base Camp Pendleton. Plaintiff will amend this complaint to show said
Detendants’ true names and capacities when the same have been ascertained. Plaintiff believes,
and based thereon alleges, that Delendants sued herein as Does 1-7 are in some manner
responsibie for the acts and injuries alleged herein.

16. The acts or omissions of all Defendants, and each of them, were done under the
color of the statutes, ordinances, regulations, customs and usages of the Government of the
Untted States, the U.S. Navy and/or the USMC. All Defendants are sued in their official capacity
tor declaratory and injunctive relief. Defendants Special Agent Martin and Does {-7 are sued in
their individual capacity for damages.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

L7. Carolyn Martin ("Ms. Martin™) served for fourteen years in the United States
Marine Corps in intelligence and administration capacities. She has worked as a federal contract
ivestigator for approximately the past ten years. Historically, the bulk of Ms. Martin’s federal
contracts involved personnel security investigations (“PSIs™) for federal agencies. For
approximately the past tour years she has also conducted military criminal defense investigations.
Defendants’ actions have so disrupted her abitity to conduct PSIs that her only current contracts
are military criminal defense investigations.

18. Ms. Martin is not a private investigator. Private investigators are licensed by a
state to conduct investigations in that state under its statutes. [ contrast, Ms. Marfin contracts
with tederal agencies and private individuals to conduct investigations under authority of federal
laws, regulations and guidelines.

9. Ms. Martin has held a “Top Secret” security clearance with multiple federal
agencies since approximately 1984. A Top Secret security clearance is granted only after
completion and adjudication of an extensive PSL. All Ms. Martin’s PSI contracts require a Top
Secret security clearance. Military criminal defense investigations in certain sensitive areas also
require a security clearance.

20. Since 2006, Ms. Martin has conducted approximately 40 criminal defense

investigations in the military justice system. Ms. Martin enters into a contractual agreement
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directly with the defendant but works at the direction of defense counsel. Ms. Martin's contracts
typically require the accused to pay her an initial retainer fee and an hourly rate for subsequent
services renderedl. Because service members often cannot afford to pay for her full investigative
services, detense counsel normally requests that the court-martial convening authority or the
military judge authorize government payraent for her investigative work. The convening
authority and the court deny those requests in the vast majority of cases. As a result, much of Ms.
Martin’s investigative work on behalf of accused service members is uncompensated. Beyond a
certain point in an investigation, her typical client is no longer capable of paying her, even though
further investigation is required for an adequate defense.

21. As a criminal defense investigator, Ms. Martin assists the defense by conducting
an independent investigation of the evidence. This includes interviewing the accused and the
witnesses, conducting an investigation of the scene of the alleged crime, engaging in other
background investigation, communicating with defense counsel about her lindings, and writing
repotts for defense counsel. Where Ms. Martin uncovers relevant evidence, she often testifies to
bring evidence before the court. Ms. Martin also sometimes assists the defense in post-trial
matters betore military appellate courts and in administrative separation hearings. While the
courts have widely recognized the necessity of defense investigation in criminal cases, see, e.g.,
Williams v. Stewart, 441 F.3d 1030, 1053 (9th Cir. 2006), Ms. Martin is aware of only one other
contract investigator in the United States whose work is dedicated to military criminal defense.

22, Ms. Martin’s investigations have enabled her clients’ attorneys to undermine
prosecution testimony in courts-martial in & number of cases.

a. U.S. v. Potts: Ms. Martin uncovered information leading to the recall of a
key prosecution witness, who admitted that his prior testimony included misrepresentations. She
also discovered multiple defense witnesses. Her client was subsequently found not guilty of
multiple counts of fraud.

b. U.S. v. Daapan: Ms. Martin discovered that the alleged victim of assault
had lied about his past military service and decorations, undermining his credibility. Fer client

was subsequently found not guilty of assault.

W
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C. U.S. v. Blundell: Ms. Martin discovered that the alleged incident of ¢hild
molestation occurred in an open arca and that an adult male residing with the alleged victim at the
time of the alleged incident had never been interviewed by NCIS. Her client was subsequently
tound not guilty of the molestation charge.

d. U.S. v. Skinner: Ms. Martin identified several witnesses who provided
testimony helptul to the defense. Fler client was found not guilty of sexual harassment.

23. Ms. Martin’s direct testimony in military justice proceedings have also effectively
assisted the defense in a number of cases, including the following:

a. U.S. v. Beene: At a motions hearing, Ms. Martin testified that NCIS agents’
interrogation violated an NCIS policy and regulation. NCIS agents had asked her client to take a
polygraph examination. Her client agreed, but the agents never administered the polygraph
examination. However, the agents obtained a signed “confession” from her client in which he
admitted to having non-consensual sex with the victim. The interrogation was not video
recorded, although video capability was available and there were no other witnesses to the
“contession.”

b. U.S. v, Potts: Al trial, Ms, Martin testified that other individuals had the
opportunity and capability to create the fraudulent entries her client was accused of creating,

c. .8 v. Maziarz: At a motions hearing (n a security breach case, Ms. Martin
testified on security regulations and mandates within the Department of Defense, explaining the
differences between a security breach, violation, and compromise.

d. U8 v. Root: [n a proceeding resulting in her client being released from
pre-trial custody, Ms. Martin testitied as to the reasons that her client was not a risk to flee to his
tamily in Japan.

24, Ms. Martin has written investigative reports that assisted the defense. For
example, in U.S. v. Wood, defense counsel relied upon her post-trial investigative report in an

appeal that successfully set aside her client’s rape conviction based on insufficient evidence.
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23. [n the Department of the Navy, which includes both the U.S. Navy and the U.S.
Marine Corps, defendant Naval Criminal [nvestigation Service (*NCIS”) is responsible for
investigating felonies punishable under the Uniform Code of Mifitary Justice.

26. Since around June 2009, military law enforcement personnel, including NCIS
Special Agent Martin, an unknown agent here referred to as John Doe 1, and various Mifitary
Police {*MP”) here referred to as John Does 2-7, have harassed and intimidated Ms. Martin on
account of her defense investigations.

27. On June 29, 2009, four MPs pufled Ms. Martin over as she left the parking lot of
the defense sector of Camp Pendleton, Legal Services Support Section-Echo (“LSSS-E™). She
was traveling with the civilian criminal defense attorney of one of her clients at the time. One of
the MPs told Ms. Martin she had been pulled over for not displaying a California vehicle
registration sticker, though he acknowledged that her vehicle displayed a valid sticker. The MP
demanded Ms. Martin’s identification and credentials and eventually issued a warning citation.

28. On June 30, 2009, as Ms. Martin entered Camp Pendleton, she was told by an MP
to pull over. After she pulied over, another MP approached her and asked for identification.
Adfter she produced her driver’s ticense from inside her Defense Intelligence Agency (“DIA™)
credential holder she was allowed to leave. Ms. Martin had entered Camp Pendieton hundreds of
times previously and had never previously been pulled over at the entrance gate.

29, On July 23, 2009, an MP vehicle - this time accompanied by an unmarked car —
again pulled Ms. Martin over as she left LSSS-E after conducting defense investigation business.
The MP officer who pulied her over, referved to here as Doe 2, initially said that he had c.locked
her speeding, although he later said someone had called to tell him that she was speeding. Ms.
Martin was not speeding and was not issued a citation for speeding.

30. [t quickly became clear to Ms. Martin that the allegation of speeding was a pretext
for interrogating her about her credentials, When Doe 2 questioned Ms. Martin about her
credentials, she responded that she had DIA contractor credentials. A male voice from the
unrnarked car shouted “Get her credentials!” and the MP demanded Ms. Martin’s DIA

credentials. This contused Ms. Martin. She had not presented her DIA credentials to anyone that
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day. She used her DIA credentials to fulfill PST coatracts with DIA, not to engage in military
criminal defense investigations.

31. With Ms. Martin’s DIA credentials in hand, Doe 2 walked back to the unmarked
car before returning aad telling Ms. Martin to step out of her vehicle. Ms. Martin then
encountered a man in civilian clothes, here referred to as Doe [, standing next to the unmarked
car. She realized that he was the man who shouted for the MP to seize her credentials. He did
not show any identification, saying only that he was a Special Agent with the Office of the
[nspector General, though he did not say in what agency.

32. By this point, two other MP vehicles had arrived. Doe ! asked Ms. Martin
whether she used NCIS credentials or posed as an NCIS officer. She told him that she does not
have NCIS credentials, has never displayed NCIS credentials, and has never identified herself as
an NCIS agent. Doe | asked Ms. Martin for permission to question her further and to search her
person and vehicle. Ms. Martin denied consent to search and requested an attorney. Doe |
responded that she was not under arrest, but he told her that she was not free to leave and that he
woutd not allow her to call an attorney.

33. Later, Ms. Martin told Doe 1 that she needed to call her son, who was expecling
her at home. He said that she could call her son, but that she had to place the call from his phone,
and could not use her own phone. He dialed her son’s number and handed her the phone.

34, Doe [ continued questioning Ms. Martin about her credentials and about the
contractors she worked for. Ms. Martin answered his questions. Doe | then returned to the
unmarked vehicle and spoke on the phone. At that point, five armed MP officers, here refarred to
as Does 3-7, approached Ms. Martin and surrounded her on all sides. Doe | returned and
repeated his questions about credentia{s- to Ms. Martin. Ms. Martin said that she would no longer
speak to Doe | and wished to return home. Doe [ told Ms. Martin that she was not allowed to
tcave and that a search warrant for her vehicle and person was on its way.

35 Atthis point, Ms. Martin had been detained on the roadside for approximately one-
and-one-halt hours. Numerous cars passed during that period. Ms. Martin was embarrassed and
humiliated by the scene, as it made her appear to be some sort of criminal who required the

3. COMPLAINT
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attention of multipie MP vehicles and an vnmarked car, Being surrounded by Does 3-7 and
relentlessly questioned by Doe 1 caused her to feel heipless and to fear what would happen next.
Ms. Martin was also very frustrated because she had many things to do to prepare for the next
day’s out-of-town case.

36. Doe | continued asking Ms. Martin the same questions concerning her credentials.
tle would go away for a few minutes, speak on the phone, return, and ask her the same questions
again. Finally, desperate to get home after being detained on the roadside for one-hour-and-forty-
five minutes, Ms. Martin told Doe 1 they could search het car. Doe { and one individual among
Does 3-7 went through everything. They went through her glove compartment and console
compartment. They ;searched under her seats, pulled out the floor mats, took mats out of trunk,
and went through everything in the trunk, including privileged and confidential files of one of her
clients. Doe { took her purse outside and put its contents on the ground.

| 37. NCIS Special Agent Martin arrived soon after the search with another marked MP
vehicle. Agent Martin told Ms. Martin that he had received a call from an MP reporting that Ms.
Martin had presented NCIS credentials at the Camp Pendleton gate. Ms. Martin denied this false
atlegation. She also pointed out how absurd the allegation appeared in light of the search that had
just taken place which faited to turn up any false documents or false identification. None of the
Defendants ever had reasonable suspicion or probable cause to believe that Ms. Martin had
presented NCIS credentials or otherwise impersonated an NCIS officer.

38. Doe 1 then informed Ms. Martin that he had called DIA and that DIA directed him
to confiscate Ms. Martin’s DIA credentials. Ms. Martin replied that any problems with the DIA
credentials should be handled by the sponsoring agent for those credentials, ADC, Ltd. ("ADC™),
and that Doe [ lacked authority to confiscate them. Despite Ms. Martin’s protests, Doe | turned
the credentials over to Agent Martin. Agent Martin denied Ms. Martin’s request to call ADC.
MPs then escorted Ms. Martin off the base.

39. Doe 1, Agent Martin, and Does 2-7 detained Ms. Martin on the roadside that day

for approgimately two hours, during which time they intimidated and publicly humiliated her.
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40. On July 27, 2009, Computer Science Corporation ("CSC”) — the sponsoring agent
for Ms. Martin’s Customs and Border Patrol (“CBP”) credentials — informed Ms, Martin that
CBP recalled her credentials. Ms. Martin had never previously had any problems with her CBP
credentials. While CSC advised Ms. Martin that CBP had offered no reason for the recall, that
action tollowed a mere tour days after Defendants’ unjustified confiscation of Ms. Martin’s DIA
credentials.

41, Detendants’ actions against Ms. Martin produced nearly immediate negative
financial consequences that remain today. Prior to the recall of her CBP credentials on account of
Defendants’ actions, CBP contracts constituted the vast majority of Ms. Martin’s PSI work. Out
of 32 PSls Ms. Martin performed in 2009, 22 were on CBP contracts. Out of 57 PSIs Ms. Martin
performed in 2008, 34 were on CBP contracts. Ms. Martin supports herself through her contract
investigation work and a major source of her income was suddenly cut off with the recall of her
CBP credentials. As a result of the loss of her CBP contracts, Ms. Martin now must rely for
income on military criminal defense investigations. Defense investigations typically provide less
regular and constant work than do PSIs.

42. On August 4, 2009, Ms, Martin encountered Doe { in the parking lot of the
Bellefleur Restaurant in Carlsbad, California. When Ms. Martin walked out of the restaurant she
saw Doe | walking toward her. He stopped mid-stride when he saw her. As Ms. Martin pulled
out of the restaurant parking lot in her car, Doe | proceeded to foilow her, onto Interstate 3, and
off'at an exit. Frightened at being followed and not wanting to be tailed to her home, Ms. Martin
made some unexpected turns, entered an atley and parked behind a building, at which point Doe 1
apparently lost sight of her.

43, On August 13, 2009, Ms. Martin entered LSSS-D, the law center and courtroom at
Camp Pendleton, to attend a client’s hearing. A military prosecutor asked her for identification.
When Ms. Martia produced her driver’s license, the prosecutor handed her a folded sheet of paper
and told her an investigator was looking for her. The paper had “OPM,” the initials of the Office
of Personnel Management, the federal government’s human resources agency, handwritten above

the typewritten name “Scot Rezendes” and two telephone numbers.
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d4., On August 17, 2009, the Califoraia Bureau of Security and [nvestigative Services
("BSIS7} sent Ms. Martin a “Cease and Desist” letter, ordering her to stop operating as a private
investigator without a state license. This seemed strange to Ms. Martin since BSIS had
determined in 2007 that she was not subject to state licensing requirements. Ms. Martin
responded with a written declaration indicating that her work concerned federal matters and
theretore no state license was required.

45. Steve Cline, the civilian attorney for one of Ms. Martin’s clients, Staff Sergeant
Jeremy Nash, subsequently subpoenaed BSIS ftor all records relating to Sergeant Nash. The
subpoenaed documents revealed that a prosecutor in the Nash case, USMC Captain Brandon W.
Barnett, had previously subpoenaed BSIS for all documents related to Ms. Martin. Captain
Barnett also contacted BSIS with questions about alleged unlicensed activity by Ms. Martin, The
records also indicated that Special Agent Martin informed BSIS that NCIS was investigating Ms.
Martin for impersonating a federal officer.

46, On October 27, 2009, a man who identified himself as NCIS Agent Gonzales
tollowed Ms. Martin from LSSS-E to the brig at Camp Pendleton. Agent Gonzales questioned
Ms. Martin about her credentials and her employers.

47. NCIS agents have engaged in surveillance of Ms. Martin and her home. Ms.
Martin’s son and neighbor, on separate occasions, each saw an individual in a black vehicle
taking surveillance photos of their house. Jay Sullivan, a civilian attorney and Navy commander
reservist, informed Ms. Martin that photos of her face and her car parked in froat of a house were
posted on a “be on the lookout” board at the NCIS Field Office at Marine Corps Air Station
Miramar earlier this year. Ms. Martin has regularly seen, and continues to see, dark vehicles
parked near her house, apparently for surveillance purposes. She became constantly fearful of
what NCIS, and particularly Agent Martin, might do next.

48, On May 3, 2010 at approximately 6:55 a.m., Special Agent Martin and Doe |
appeared at Ms. Martin’s home, ringing her doorbel and banging on her froat door. Ms. Martin,
who was preparing to shower, did not answer for some time, believing it was her son who was

knocking and that he would soon enter through the back door. After the clatter persisted for some
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time, Ms. Martin slipped on a shirt and answered the door. She was startied to find the same
agents who had detained her for two hours on July 23, 2009 standing on her doorstep at that hour,

49. Agent Martin addressed Ms. Martin when she opened the door, saying, “Carolyn,
you need to take this,” while holding up a document. When Ms. Martin refused to take the
document, Agent Martin threw the document at her, striking her in the face. As the two men
walked away, Agent Martin muttered *“You’ve been served.”

50. The document was a District Court Violation Notice apparently filted out by Agent
Martin. The citation purported to charge Ms. Martin with impersonating a tederal officer on July
23, 2009 at Camp Pendleton, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 912 (“Section 9127). See Ex. A
(Violation Notice). Because violation of section 912 is punishabie by up to three years
tmprisonment, section 912 cannot be properly charged by a Violation Notice. See U.S. Const.
amend. V; Fed. R, Crim. P. 7(a){1) (offense punishable by a year or more may only be prosecuted
by information or indictment); 58(b)(1) (Ya petty offense may ... proceed on a citation or
violation notice”). The citation that Agent Martin struck Ms. Martin with contained no violation
number, location code, or court date, though it did contain a checked box indicating Ms. Martin
must appear in court. Ms. Martin has never received a court date or other further notice regarding
this purported charge.
5L Approximately thirty minutes atter this confrontation, Agent Martin and Doe |
returned, again ringing the doorbell and knocking on the door. Ms. Martin did not answer the
door this time, because she was home alone and afraid for her safety, Ms. Martin subsequently
noticed that the glass window in her front door had been broken by the pounding of either or both
Agent Martin or Doe |. The defendants’ visits to her home that morning terrified Ms. Martin,

52 Defendants’ surveillance of Ms. Martin continues. For example, on June 28, 2010,
she lett her house and noticed individuals parked in a black SUV in the street near her house.
When they saw her looking at them, they started the vehicle and drove off. She feels like she has
no privacy left even in her own home because ot the surveillance and threat of another intrusion

like the one on the moming of May 3, 2010,
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53. Lt. Col. Sean Sullivan, the Stalt Judge Advocate at the Marine Corps Recruit
Depot (*MCRD™) San Diego and a tormer prosecutor for the Department of the Navy and USMC
in cases on which Ms. Martin worked as a defense ivestigator, recently informed the chief
military detense counsel at MCRD San Diego that Ms. Martin was banned from Building 12 at
MCRD San Diego, which includes the military criminal detense office, the legal assistance oflice,
and the courtroom at MCRD San Diego. There is no legitimate justification for Lt. Col.
Sullivan’s decision to ban Ms. Martin trom these portions of MCRD San Diego, which she is
otherwise entitled to enter. Ms. Martin is currently conducting two military criminal defense
investigations out of MCRD San Diego. Lt. Col. Sullivan’s order substantially impairs her ability
to meet and confer with defense counsel, prevents her from attending any courtroom proceedings
or testitying on behalf of her clients, and otherwise impedes her ability to adequately investigate
her client’s cases. Lt. Col. Sullivan also informed the chief military defense counsel that he is
considering banning Ms. Martin from MCRD San Diego completely.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF FIRST AMENDMENT - Retaliation for Protected Speech
(Against Agent Martin and Doe 1 for damages and declaratory and injunctive relief)
(Against Mabus, NCIS, Clookie, and Jacobson for declaratory and injunctive relief)

54, Plaintift incorporates by reterence the atlegations ot paragraphs 1 to 53, above, as
though set forth herein.

55. As a criminal defense investigator, Plaintiff engages in speech and other activifies
that are protected under the First Ameadment (“First Amendment-protected speech and
activities™), including, but not limited to: engaging in factual investigation and analysis;
interviewing her clients, witnesses and other individuals who may have information relevant to a
particular case; communicating her findings to her clients and defense counsel; discussing matters
with her clients and defense counsel; testifying in pre-trial proceedings or courts-martial; and
communicating her services to defense counsel.

56. NCIS has intentionally retaliated against, and coatinues to retaliate against,
Plaintitf on account of at least some of her First Amendment-protected speech and activities with

the impermissible motive of curbing that speech and those activities.
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57. The retaliatory acts alleged in paragraph 35 deprived Plaintiff of her right to
engage n her First Amendment-protected speech and activities free of governmental retaliation,
in violation of the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, and actionable under Bivens against
Agent Martin and Doe 1.

58. The relevant law was clearly established at the time of Agent Martin’s and Doe s
interference with Plaintitfs rights.

59. As a proximate result of the retaliatory acts alleged above, Plaintiff suftered actual
harm, entitling her to damages in an amount to be proven at trial.

60.  The ongoing retaliatory acts alleged in paragraph 55 have deprived, are depriving,
or will imminently deprive, Plaintiff of her right.to engage in her First Amendment-protected
speech and activities {ree of governmental retaliation, in violation of the First Amendment to the
U.S. Counstitution.

6l. Plaintiif is entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief against further or imuminent
violations of her First Amendment rights, and damages against Agent Martin and Doe {.

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF FOURTH AMENDMENT — Unreasonable Search and Seizure
(Against Agent Martin and Does 1-7 for damages)

62. Plaintitt incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 to 33, above, as
though set forth herein.

63.  Through actions described in paragraphs 29-39, above, on July 23, 2009, Agent
Martin and Does -7 stopped and detained Plaintiff for an unreasonably long period of time and
searched her car and person in an unreasonable manner.

64, Agent Martin and Does 1-7, individually and/or in concert with others, deprived
Plaintitt of her rights secured by the Fourth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution, actionable
under Bivens, including her right to be free from unreasonable searches and seizures.

63, The rvelevant law was clearly established at the time of Agent Martin’s and Does -

7’s violation of Plaintiff's Fourth Amendment rights.

(4. COMPLAINT
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66. As a proximate result of the acts alleged in paragraph 63, above, Plaintiff suffered
actual harm, entitling her to damages in an amount to be proven at (rial.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF FIFTH AMENDMENT - Unreasonable Interference with Employment
(Against NCIS, Clookie, Jacobson, Mabus, Agent Martin and Doe |
for declaratory and injunctive relief)

67. Plaintiff incorporates by reterence the allegations of paragraphs [ to 53, above, as
though set forth herein.

68.  NCIS has unreasonably taken actions against Plainfiff, and continues to take such
actions, that stigmatize her and threaten her ability to obtain employment as a federal contract
investigator or defense investigator, or imminently will so stigmatize her and threaten her ability
to obtain employment as a federal contract investigator or defense investigator.

69.  The ongoing acts alieged in paragraph 68 are depriving, or will imminently
deprive, Plaintift of her right to engage in her chosen profession without unreasonable
governmental interference, in violation of the substantive component of the Due Process Clause
ol the Fith Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.

70. Plaintiff is entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief against further or imminent
violations of her Fifth Amendment rights.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF FIRST AMENDMENT — [nterference with Right of Access to Court
{Against Sullivan for Declaratory and Injunctive Relief)

71. Plaintift incorporates by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 to 53, above, as
though set torth herein.

72. Defendants Sullivan and Mabus are violating, or will imminently violate, Ms.
Martin’s First Amendment rights to access criminal and other proceedings in the courtroom of
MCRD San Diego by banning her from that courtroom without adequate justitication.

73. Plaintitf is entitled to declaratory and injunctive relief against further or imminent
violations of her First Amendment rights.

PRAYER FOR RELIET

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for relief and judgment as follows:

15. COMPLAINT
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Awarding general and compensatory damages against Agent Martin and Doe I,

and each ol them, in an amount to be proven at trial;

5

Awarding exemplary and punitive damages against Agent Martin and Doe 1, in an

amount to be proven at trial;

~

J.

Preliminarity and permanently enjoining Defendants, their successors, agents,

servants and employees, and anyone acting in concett with Detendants, from retaliating against

Plaintift, from uncoastitutionally interfering with her employment, and from barring her from

access to court;

4,
5.

0.

Declaring Defendants’ conduct to be unlawful;
Awarding Plaintift the costs and tees incurred in this litigation,
Awarding other such relief as the court deems proper.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintift hereby demands a trial by jury for all issues so triable.

Dated: September §, 2010

Respecttully submitted,

IMPERIAL COUNTIES
DAVID BLAIR-LOY (229235)
SEAN RIORDAN (255752)

ACLU FOUNDATION OF SAN DIEGO &

g e

SEAN RIORDAN (255752)
Attorney for Plaintiff
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United States District Court
Violation Notice

Violation No. Prig Officer Namne

T MpgrIN

Officer Mo,

NCis

YOU ARE CHARGED WITH THE FOLLOWING VIOLATION
Date and, Time of Qifense Offense Charged

13/23/2009 igisc 112
mc”mmmcﬁﬂﬁ% MM %E) WP &UMWN)C#

Gffense Deseription

MSE PREsoNATION 0F OFFlced OR
NWPLOYEE oF tHe UNITED STATES

Defendant's I.asi/NJme First Name M.

CALOLIN

N4 Rl

VEHICLE DESCRIPTION
Vehicle Tag No, Vehicle Tag State | Year Vehicle Mzke Vehicle Color

ot
A [/ YOU MUST APPEAR IN COURT. SEE INSTRUCTIONS.

B[] YOUMODST MARK ONE OF THE TWOQ CHOICES BELOW
AND MAIL THIS FORM WITHIN 21 DAYS. SEE INSTRUCTIONS.

[ wish to terminate this matter by paying the collateral shown
below, enclosed.

I plead not guilty and promise to appear as required,

YOUR COURT DATE
Court Address Date

Time

Collaters! (fing)
For payment by credit card, SEE INSTRUCTIONS,

DD FORM 1805, SEP 1998

{Accountable upon #suance to the offeader
und unti} passed © the Appropriare Ceniral
Violatiens Burean (Magisteate Cournt).}

Previcus edition is obsolete.

MUST APPEAR ¥

e, -

INSTRUCTIONS
H."f\?j

5 checked on the face of this cliation, T4
N COURT ai the date and iime and pla\?;-
and time and place are shown a0 yom Wil

37 wian and where 80 appeds.
aiad

tocked ot the face of Hus ciiat
T AR TUE FOLLOWNG:

I ROY A

LT I

T T
WiTh, & e

L the 1ed }

your check O @dnsy 0
Ha T LS ST AT T wau

AL VIDLATIONS BURBAY. X you
are charged with o molov vehicle violation, & y&Cord of
4 Ay Be renovted o th

your payment of coltateral may He repovted 10

Department of Motor Yebicies of your state.
OR

3. PLEAD NOT GUILTY AND PROMISE TO
APPEAR AS REQUIRED. If the officer has written on
the face of this form a date, time, and place for a court
hearing, you must appear before 2 federal magist;atejudgc
at that me. If no court date, time, and place s shown,
this information will be provided to you by mail. If you
have not received a "Notice to Appear” within 45 days,
call the Central Violations Bureau at 1-800-827-2582.
You tnust notity CVB at the above nuntber of any change
of address.

maks

paysbis 1o+

NOTICE

If you do not pay the collateral amount, and if you fait to appear in
court at the date and time scheduted for you, THE UNITEDR STATES
DISTRICT COURT MAY ISSUE A SUMMONS ORDERING
YOUR APPTARANCE OR ISSUE A WARRANT FOR YOUR
ARREST. If you are charged with a motor vehicle violation, THE
COURT MAY ALSO REPORT YOUR NON-COMPLIANCE TO
THE ODEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES OF YOUR
STATE, which may affect your driving and/or registration privileges.
Furthermore, THE COURT MAY INCREASE YOUR FINE OR
(MPOSE ADDITIONAL PENALTIES. Any fine or collateral
assessed is paid direcdy into the U.S. Treasury.

DU FORM 1808 INSTRUCTIONS, SEP 1998
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